ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 25, 2005
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative JimElkins
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW S): DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON, DI VI SI ON OF PERSONNEL
- HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO 21

"An Act relating to false statenments in state election

advertising; and providing for an effective date.”
- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 21

SHORT TI TLE: POLI TI CAL ADVERTI SI NG
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H STA, JUD

01/ 25/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER
M LA COSGROVE, Director

Di vi si on of Personnel
Department of Adm nistration

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 25, 2005



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the overview of the Departnent of
Adm nistration's Division of Personnel.

REPRESENTATI VE RAVRAS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 21.

BROOKE M LES, Executive Director

Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion (APQCC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on behalf of APOC during
the hearing on HB 21.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:01:54 AM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Elkins, Lynn, Gardner, and Seaton were present at the
call to order. Representati ves Ranras and G uenberg arrived as

the neeting was in progress.

OVERVI EW( S)

DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI QN, DI VI SI ON OF PERSONNEL

8:02: 33 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was the
overview fromthe Division of Personnel.

8:02:55 AM

M LA COSGROVE, Director, D vision of Personnel, Departnent of
Adm ni stration, said the division has changed considerably. In
Septenber 2004, the governor announced that he wanted to
integrate human resource (HR) services to form an enterprise
nodel of service delivery. She said on October 16, all HR staff
transferred into the direct line of supervision of the Division
of Personnel, and by Novenber 10, nost of those individuals had
been physically noved and co-located, and their assignnents had

been changed. She enphasized that the transitional change has
been nassi ve. She referenced a one-page handout [included in
the commttee packet], entitled, "D vision of Personnel HR
Integration Year One Acconplishnments.” She listed the

governor's four goals, as noted on the handout, to: standardize

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 25, 2005



HR policy and practice within the executive branch; inplenent
enterprise technology systenms and tools to inprove service
delivery; i ncrease oper at i onal ef ficiency; and reduce
adm ni strative costs.

8: 05: 35 AM

M5. COSGROVE gave exanples of how all four goals are being
reached, including a new system that allows unions and
managenment to go through the grievance process online. She said
there is a new online position description system that wll
allow people to submt classification actions through the web

In ternms of reducing adm nistrative costs, M. Cosgrove stated
that the division has reduced the budgeted positions by at |east
7.9 percent. She noted that the average salary range of HR
enpl oyees has decreased from 15.3 to 14.7, thus, the division is
doing nore "with a whole lot less.”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what the enterprise nodel of delivery
mentioned by Ms. Cosgrove is and, if it is the new nodel, how it
differs fromthe old nodel

8:08:41 AM

M5. COSGROVE explained that with the earlier nodel, the 14
different operating agencies had their own HR services,
i ncluding managers and payroll, and approxinmately 225 people
delivered those services. After integration, all of the people
providing HR services were integrated into the Division of
Per sonnel .

8. 09: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the nunber of grievances increases
when the grievance process is streamined, and if there is a
backl og of filed grievances.

8:10: 44 AM

M5. COSGROVE said the only change is that the grievance is filed
el ectronically, and she said she is not aware of an increase in
filing or a significant backlog in grievances.

8:11:19 AM

CHAI R SEATON wanted clarity on how agencies are charged for the
HR services, and if the savings are passed on to them

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 25, 2005



8:11:51 AM

M5. COSCGROVE said the division now has a conplex cost allocation
nodel that is based on each individual worker. A good portion
of the budget conmes from federal funds, and sonme of it cones
from general funds. She noted that approximately 85 percent of
the budget is staffing charges. She explained that there's been
an overall reduction in the nunber of bodies, but associated
costs, such as the Public Enployees' Retirenent System (PERS)
and | easing costs, have gone up. |In response to a question from
Chair Seaton, she said that - |looking at the state as a whole -
it could be said there is definite cost savings, while the
prices of individual agencies my fluctuate nore or |ess,
dependi ng on the nunber of individuals servicing them now.

8:15:21 AM

CHAI R SEATON queried whet her individual agencies m ght have seen
a cost increase because the Division of Personnel functions are
bei ng charged back to them

8:15: 39 AM

M5. COSGROVE said that the entire nodel is being split 14 ways.
She turned to a one-page handout [included in the commttee
packet] that shows a functional overview of the D vision of

Personnel. She pointed out that the division has adm nistrative
services, and its own information technology services. In
response to a question from Representative Gatto, she expl ai ned
that she uses the phrase "like pay for |ike work"” rather than
"equal pay for equal work," because that is how it read in
statute.

8:.19:35 AM

M5. COSGROVE, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto, said she is not aware of any overarching grievances that
have been filed regarding discrimnation issues. She noted
that, wthin the last several years, an outside review of the
classification scheme showed that there weren't any gender,
racial, or other inequities; however, she said there are tines
when unions assert that there is a class of people who is
under paid conpared to another class, and then the division does
an anal ysi s.

8:21:18 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 25, 2005



M5. COSGROVE, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
stated that the classification and pay plan is separate fromthe
state’'s pay policy. The former assigns relative pay, and the
| atter sets the actual dollar anount. She said the dollar
anmounts of the ranges change, and that an enpl oyee can get step-
raises within a range. 1In response to a foll ow up question from
Chair Seaton, she said a Range 19 in one state agency can be a
different level than a Range 19 in another state agency.

8:24:48 AM

CHAIR SEATON surmsed that the policy description of a
particular range should be the same even if the pay is
different. He requested a spreadsheet detailing pay ranges.

8:25:05 AM

M5. COSGROVE offered to provide a Ilist of pay ranges by
bargaining unit for the commttee.

8:25:30 AM

M5. COSGROVE returned to the division chart, to the Equal
Enpl oyment Opportunity Program ( EECP). She expl ai ned what that
program entails, and said that it is a successful program In
response to Chair Seaton, she said EEOP is not the sanme as
Al aska Commi ssion on Human Rights, but that the two interact.
In response to a question from Chair Seaton, she said it is the
division's hope that people wth a conplaint wthin the
adm nistration go through EEOP before filing with the Al aska
Comm ssion on Human Rights. In response to a question from
Representative G uenberg, she said she believes that the EECP
and the Alaska Commssion on Human Rights should be kept
separate, because the division provides proactive training to
managenent to ensure that problens don't arise, and it resolves
i nformal conpl ai nts.

8:29:31 AM

M5. COSGROVE pointed to Wrkplace Al aska on the chart and said
that agency has won awards. The agency works with hiring
manager s to mai nt ai n consi stency W th enpl oynent | aw.
Furthernore, it also houses a recruitnent section that works
with the Departnent of Corrections, the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities, and the Departnent of Public
Safety, to recruit people who are certified by the Al aska Police

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 25, 2005



Standard Council, including: troopers, correctional officers,
and airport safety officers. The agency also houses the
Enpl oyee Call Center.

8:31:46 AM

M5. COSGROVE said Enployee Services also manages the Enpl oyee
Records function and a small program called WrkFirst, which
works to get people on occupational disability back on the work
force. She offered an exanple.

8:34: 07 AM

M5. COSGROVE, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner regarding how effective the program is, said the
division is presently putting together a report. She offered to
send the report to the conmttee.

8:34:42 AM

CHAI R SEATON said there is a problem in Seward in getting and
retaining corrections officers because of the backlog and tim ng
in actually getting a person hired. He said he appreciates the
efforts of HR services to speed the process.

8:36: 37 AM

M5. COSGROVE, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg regarding the Anmericans wth Disabilities Act (ADA),
said "that is part of our WrkFirst program” She offered
further details. In response to a followup question, from
Representative Gruenberg, she said recruitnent is set up so any
person with disabilities does not have an adverse experience in
the hiring process.

8:39: 09 AM

M5. COSGROVE, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg regarding the grievance process, said people who are
not state enployees can file a conplaint with her, while state
enpl oyees go first through their departnent coordinators and
t hen, depending on the issue, they conme to the division. She
stated that, alnpbst exclusively, enploynent related grievances
end up in HR.  She offered further details.

8:40: 07 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 25, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG

8:40: 22 AM
M5. COSGROVE, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, said there is a right to appeal. She spoke about the

procedure and the right to file through the federal governnent.
In response to a followup question from Representative
Gruenberg regarding dissatisfaction wth a decision about
hiring, she said she believes people have formal conplaint
rights and can go through the statewide ADA coordinator's
office, as well as filing through federal avenues. In response
to questions from Chair Seaton and Representative G uenberg, she
offered her belief that people would also have the option to
file through the Al aska Human Ri ghts Conm ssion or EECP.

8:41:40 AM
M5. COSGROVE expl ai ned that each agency has an ADA coordi nator.
8:42:09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG asked if there is a state |aw that
speci fies what the procedure is.

8:42: 30 AM

M5. COSGROVE said she would get back to Representative G uenberg
on that question.

8:42:52 AM

M5. COSGROVE directed attention back to the handout and pointed
to managenent services, which includes training and devel opnent,
statewi de planning and research, and the managenent consulting
unit. She described the function of each service. The
managenent consulting unit includes the general agencies group,
the resources group, the public protection group, the DOT&PF
group, and the [Departnent of Health & Social Services (DHSS)]

group.

8:47:. 37 AM

M5. COSGROVE, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto, said there are 14,500 permanent enployees in the state
executive branch core work force. She estimated there are

approximately 1,200-1,300 supervisors and probably another 200-

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 25, 2005



300 people operating as division directors or in a supervisory
capacity in a partially exenpt service.

8:48: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said it sounds |ike one out of ten is a
supervi sor, which is above the recommended one out of five or
Si X.

8:49: 05 AM

M5. COSGROVE surm sed that one out of ten sounds about right,
but many of those supervisors have assistants hel ping them In
response to a question from Representative Gatto regarding
whet her a supervisor with an office manager would be counted as
two supervisors, answered that it depends on whether it was a
per manent duty assignnent; i f t hat manager was i ndeed
supervising staff, he/she would be placed in a supervisory
bargaining unit and that position would then be included in the
nunbers the conmttee is review ng. She noted that on the
division's web page, under web-based planning and research, is a
wor kf orce profile.

8:51: 08 AM

M5. COSGROVE pointed out the box on the handout show ng
technical services (TS), which includes a general governnent TS
center, a resources TS center, a public protection TS center, a
DOT&PF TS center, and a [DHSS] TS center.

8:52: 28 AM

CHAI R SEATON said one of the reasons for overviews is to | ook at
m ssions and neasures. He offered a recent history of adopting
m ssions and neasures. He stated concern that the departnent
may go one direction while the legislature has not formally
adopted neasures to give the admnistration the tools to
pr oceed. He nentioned the Budgetary Finance Conmttee. He
asked Ms. Cosgrove to briefly address m ssions and neasures and
the procedures of the division regarding them

8:55: 09 AM
M5. COSGROVE said the nmissions and neasures of 2001 and 2002
would not match today's departnent, because the m ssions have

changed. The old ones were good for the |[imted core services
existing at that tine. She said HR is not only |ooking at

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 25, 2005



client base but 1is considering the follow ng: overal |
effectiveness base, quality of how services are delivered,
recruitnent, internal alignnent, and effectiveness of training.

8:57:15 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he wants continued communi cation in the future
regarding this issue.

8:58: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that AS 37.07.050 requires that
agencies submt a report annually. He asked if her agency has
submitted such a report.

8:58: 35 AM

M5. COSGROVE responded, "The docunent that | referred to, in
terms  of the workforce profile, we believe neets the
requirenents in terns of |egislative reporting.” She offered
further details. In response to a followup question from
Representative Guenberg, she said she has not personally
checked the docunent against statute, but would be happy to do
So.

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:04: 10 AMto 9: 04: 22 AM

HB 21-POLI TI CAL ADVERTI SI NG

9:04:22 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 21, "An Act relating to false statenents in state
el ection advertising; and providing for an effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt HB 21 as the working

docunent . There being no objection, HB 21 was before the
comittee.
9:04: 50 AM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor of
HB 21, said the bill is coined the "liars' bill." He said the
noral intention of the bill is excellent, but trying to prove it

is the challenge. He said it can be shown that people do cross
the line [regarding making fal se statenents during canpaigns].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 25, 2005



9: 06: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said there are three options to counter an
attack of false statenents: to counter with a simlar type of
attack; to spend a considerable anobunt in defense against the
fal sehood; and to file a conplaint to the court system He said
he hopes that HB 21 will provide a sinpler method by allowing a
person to file a conplaint with the Alaska Public Ofice
Comm ssion (APCC). A person would use a sinple form and provide
proof that the statenent is false, and APCC, under an expedited
review, would be able to dispute the [fal se] advertisenent and
force it to be discontinued and would have the authority to fine
the of fending canpaign or individual. He said the purpose of HB
21 is to ensure that the standards for truth in advertising
woul d apply to political canpaigns, just as they do in regard to
buyi ng conmerci al products or service.

9: 08: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS t al ked about a 1994 gubernatorial canpaign
when sonmeone was charged with donestic violence — a charge which
was | ater proven to be unfounded. He offered further exanples.
He said the result of false accusations is that good people are
backi ng away fromthe process to protect their integrity.

9:12: 15 AM

CHAIR SEATON let the commttee know that his intent was not to
nove HB 21 from conm ttee today.

9:12: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d she appl auds Representative Ranras’s
intent. She described a scenario in which a private citizen may
speak on the radio, not in the formof paid advertising.

9:13: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said that issue has been considered. He
indicated that a person speaking on his own behalf via public
radio [has that right through] the First Amendnent. He said he
thinks adding the word "paid" to the bill mght clean up the
process.

9: 13: 56 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 25, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN appl auded the purpose of bill. He asked if
the bill differentiates between a purposeful lie versus a
situation where soneone failed to check readily available facts.
He suggested it's the difference between a I|lie and being
i nconpetent. He offered an exanple where he had been accused of
bei ng absent during contentious votes. He said anybody could
check the House journal to find out that wasn't true. He said,
"It’s like debating what’'s the capital of North Dakota when you

can look at a map." He said responding to that may have given
wings to the lie and probably would have caused nore danaged
than he suffered. He questioned whether he suffered damage,

since he was reel ect ed.
9:16: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said Representative Lynn's exanple is
rel evant . He said he thinks it would be beneficial to use APOC
as a referee, of sorts. He concurred that if a person chooses
to respond to false accusations, that person may dignify the
act .

9:17:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = RAMRAS, in response to a question from
Representative Elkins regarding whether the bill had been
checked for constitutionality, said the bill was shown to

Legislative Legal and Research Services, and he said his
recollection is that there is a law like this in the State of
Washi ngt on. Representative Ranras reiterated that First
Amendnent rights are a concern. He noted that Representative
Bruce Weyhrauch suggested there could be |anguage added, |ike
the previously nentioned word "paid." He said he would |eave it
to the commttee to decide.

9:19: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if it was practical or even
possible for APOC to do an adequate investigation in just a few
days.

9:20: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he thinks the commttee should hear
from APOC on that issue.

9:20: 37 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 25, 2005



CHAI R SEATON turned to page 1 of the bill [lines 5-7], which
read as foll ows:

Sec. 15.13.092. False statenents 1in election
advertising. (a) A person my not neke a false
statenent in election advertising with know edge that
the statenent is false or with a reckless disregard
for whether or not the statenent is fal se.

CHAI R SEATON said he interpreted the |anguage as only referring
to a situation in which someone knows that a statenent is fal se.

9:21:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he thinks that’'s true. He said the
intent of HB 21 is to protect soneone |ike Representative Lynn

where the person who nade the accusations could have know they
were false by | ooking at the records.

9:27: 56 AM

CHAI R SEATON nentioned an incident during a Senate race when a
person was accused of "inadequate residency.” He indicated that
being able to say whether a person is a resident is a legitimte
issue and a determi nation from APOC nay take that issue off the
table when it's perfectly legitimte. He said challengers may
have a hard tine if the intent is that they only talk about
t hensel ves.

9:29: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO presented a possible scenario wherein an
opponent brags about his/her abilities as a candidate, but
soneone may question his background in areas related to driving
under the influence or pedophilia and want that investigated.

9:29: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said Representative Gatto's point is well
t aken; however , he turned back to Representative Lynn’'s
previously stated exanple and asked how a person defends agai nst
t hat .

9:31: 32 AM

REPRESENTATIVE ELKINS referred to Representati ve Gatto's
previously stated scenario. He said, "Wat if that statenent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 25, 2005



was made in a radio interview and sonehow then it was picked up
by the press and printed in the press. It's not advertising,
it'"s not true, but it's there.

9:31:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said, "Then | think you have an entirely
different problem He said he thinks there's a difference
bet ween regul ar discourse in an interview and purposely sitting
down to wite a canpaign advertisenent that is intentionally
fal se.

9:32:48 AM

CHAI R SEATON referred to the following |anguage in subsection
(c):

(c) If the person who dissemnates the false
statenent is not the maker of the false statenent, the
person who dissem nates the statenent violates (a) of
this section only if the person had actual know edge
that the statenent was false before dissenm nating the
statenent .

CHAI R SEATON said residency, in regard to where a person wll
file, is loosely interpreted by the court. He asked if that
| anguage would preclude soneone talking about soneone' s
resi dency.

9:34: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAVMRAS said he is not an attorney and doesn’'t
know how soneone would specifically interpret the |anguage. He
invited the conmttee to tighten up the |anguage of the proposed
| egislation. He restated the intent of HB 21.

9:36: 02 AM

CHAI R SEATON said it is incunmbent upon the conmttee to consider
what would and would not be acceptable with the outline of the
proposed legislation. He agreed that it will be a bal anci ng act
[to figure it out].

9:37: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the policy against expanding
liable and slander causes of action is in accord with a |ong

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 25, 2005



line of U S. Suprene Court and state suprene court cases. He
suggested HB 21 runs counter to that trend.

9: 38: 38 AM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS sai d he doesn’t know.
9:38:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG shared an anecdote about his dog that
had been alive and promnently displayed in his canpaign photo
when the photo was taken, but died shortly thereafter. He asked
if that would be considered an actionable |ie.

9:40: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON par aphr ased from [AS] 15. 13. 380,
[ subsection (d), paragraphs (1), (2), and (3), included in the
commttee packet], which read:

(d) If the conmssion expedites consideration,
the comm ssion shall hold a hearing on the conplaint
W thin t wo days after granting expedi t ed
consideration. Not later than one day after affording
the respondent notice and an opportunity to be heard,
t he conmm ssi on shal

(1) enter an energency order requiring the
violation to be ceased or to be renmedied and assess
civil penalties under AS 15.13.390 if the conmm ssion
finds that the respondent has engaged in or is about
to engage in an act or practice that constitutes or
will constitute a violation of this chapter or a
regul ati on adopted under this chapter;

(2) enter an energency order dismssing the
conplaint if the comm ssion finds that the respondent
has not or is not about to engage in an act or
practice that constitutes or wll constitute a
violation of this chapter or a regulation adopted
under this chapter; or

(3) remand the conplaint to the executive
director of the commission for consideration by the
commssion on a regular rather than an expedited
basi s.

9:41: 34 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 25, 2005



CHAI R SEATON asked how disruptive this process would be to a
candi dat e during his/her canpaign.

9:42: 28 AM

REPRESENTATIVE RAMRAS said he thinks it would be very
di sruptive, which is the intent of HB 21. He noted that each
el ection cycle is worse than the |ast one. He offered exanples.
He questioned who wll want to participate in the future.
Representative Ranras said it seens |like this issue is right for
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

9:46: 33 AM

CHAIR SEATON directed attention to [AS 15.13.380, subsection
(g)], which read:

(g A comm ssion order under (d) or (e) of this
section may be appealed to the superior court by
ei ther the conplainant or respondent within 30 days in
accordance wth the Alaska Rules of Appel | ate
Procedure.

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that that process would
hold in abeyance any order from APOC, until the appeal process
was conpl ete. He explained that he is considering the tineline
of the process and would |i ke feedback from APCC.

9:48: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER commented that the steps to proceeding
with a suit include showing that the information is false. She
asked, "What about showing that the person knew it was false?"
Representative Gardner indicated that the legislation refers to
a person who presents false information, and she noted that
there have been tinmes when organizations "do msleading or
intentionally false things." She offered exanpl es.

9:49: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that the proposed |egislation
could be used adversely. For exanple, if a political race was
cl ose, one candidate could submt a report of falsehood against
hi s/ her opponent, thereby pulling that opponent away to go deal
wi th the conpl aint.

9:49:48 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- January 25, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS sai d Representative Gardner brings up sone
interesting points. However, in the interest of tine, he did
not respond to them He enphasi zed that the issue surrounding
HB 21 is an inportant one and he encouraged the conmttee to
wor k on changi ng any | anguage to "clean up the process.”

9: 50: 36 AM

BROOKE M LES, Executive Director, Al aska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), said it is difficult to determ ne the inpact
of the bill on APOCC, but she is sure it will have inpact because
of the scope of the bill. She explained that the comm ssion
al ready receives phone calls regarding the content of politica

advertising, but during its 30-year history has had no authority
to address them w th one exception: the requirenment through AS
15.13 regarding a "correct identifier." Ms. Mles also noted
that the conm ssion has no authority regarding residency; that
rests with the Division of Elections.

9:52:40 AM

M5. MLES said the comm ssion has not net yet regarding HB 21,
but she is speaking on behalf of the staff. She appl auded
trying to "make camnpai gns nore accountable.” She said she has
concerns over First Amendnent rights, specifically in regard to
including ballot proposition advertisenents. She noted that
"adm nistering the canpaign disclosure law, wth respect to
ballot propositions, is the nost lenient.” She offered
exanpl es.

9:54: 07 AM

M5. MLES said she looks forward to working on the bill. She

recommended that the commttee consider that anything nore than
taking the advertisenent off the air and being subject to a $50
fine is not currently in statute. She said she would Iike
commttee nmenbers to review AS 15.13.095; that Section speaks to
fal se statenents in tel ephone polling or "calls to convince."

M5. MLES addressed the commission's conplaint process. She
offered her wunderstanding that the conmttee is "looking for
this to cone before the conmm ssion on an expedited basis." She

noted that the statute is permssive and requires that when a
conplaint is filed, the conplainant nust request expedited
consideration, the commssion nust neet wthin 48 hours to
deci de whether or not to expedite the consideration, and the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- January 25, 2005



hearing nust occur within 48 hours if the conplaint is accepted.
She continued as foll ows:

Because of that very short tine frame, the regul ations
that the comm ssion has adopted regarding expedited
hearings virtually requires that the conplainant

prosecute her or his own case. And that's sinply
because, in the tinme frame, there's not sufficient
time for commssion staff to conduct an in-depth
i nvestigation. However, we are available to assist

the conplainant with respect to issuing subpoenas and
many ot her admi nistrative assisting skills.

M5. MLES, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said she
believes that subpoenas can be served in a tinme-sensitive
manner .

9:57:52 AM

M5. MLES, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, confirmed that the hearings could extend in the
| egi sl ative session. However if any party to the conplaint was

a legislator, the issue would be held in abeyance "until after
five days after the legislature adjourns, because of |egislative
immnity from civil process.” In response to a followup

question from Representative Guenberg, she said it's her
understanding that a legislator cannot waive |egislative
immunity, even if that legislator wants to participate in a
hearing before APCC. She said cases can certainly go for 130
days with no action.

9:59:47 AM

CHAI R SEATON rem nded the commttee that the municipal elections
woul dn't be exenpt. He asked Ms. Mles if she would provide the
committee with an estinmated nunber of conplaints received
regardi ng fal se adverti sing.

[HB 21 was heard and hel d.]
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 01: 26 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 25, 2005



